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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Board of Directors

Sr. Name of Directors Designation DIN /PAN
No.
1 Mr. Dev Vijay Thakkar Chairman and Managing Director | 07698270
2 Mr. Vijay Thakordas Thakkar Whole time Director 00189355
3 Mrs.  Madhuriben  Thakordas | Non- Executive Director 00284480
Thakkar
4 Mrs. Tanam Vijay Thakkar Non- Executive Director 00284512
5 Mr. Anil Kumar Dhar Non- Executive Independent | 01524239
Director
6 Miss, Daisy Maring Sairel Maku Non- Executive Independent | 07732031
Director
Key Managerial Personnel
Sr. Name of KMP Designation DIN/PAN
No.
1 Mr. Kamlesh Thakordas Thakkar Chief Financial Officer | ABVPT8664P
2 Mr. Dev Vijay Thakkar Chief Executive Officer | 07698270
3 Miss. Leesa Mahesh Parekh (resigned | Company Secretary BODPP6917B
w.e.f. 2314 April, 2019)

Registered Office

10th Floor, Dev Plaza, Opp. Andheri Fire Station,

S.V. Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai- 400058.

Registrar & Transfer Agents

Rigshare Services Pvt. Ltd 15t Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building,
Opp. Vasant Oasis Apartments (Next to Keys Hotel),
Marol Maroshi Road, Andheri East, Mumbai - 400059,

Shares Listed At

BSE Limited
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street,
Mumbai - 400 001

Statutory Auditors

M/s. JMR & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Secretarial Auditor

Banker
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Cosmos Co-op. Bank Ltd,
Axis Bank Limited

NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 157" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS
OF THE COMPANY MANAS PROPERTIES LIMITED, WILL BE HELD ON MONDAY, 30th
SEPTEMBER, 2019 AT 11.00 AM. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY
SITUATED AT 10T™ FLOOR, DEV PLAZA, OPP. ANDHERI FIRE STATION, 5. V. ROAD,
ANDHERI (WEST), MUMBAI - 400058 TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited financial statements of the Company for the
Financial Year ended 315t March, 2019 together with the reports of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vijay Thakkar (DIN 00189355), who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Special Business:

3. REVISION IN REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO MR. DEV THAKKAR, MANAGING DIRECTOR
OF THE COMPANY

To Consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196,197, 203 read with Schedule V,
regulation 17(6) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 and
all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 [including any statutory
modification(s) thereto from time to time or any re-enactment therenf for the time being in
force) (the “Act”), consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for
payment of revised remuneration from Rs. 24,00,000/- [Rupees Twenty four lakhs) per annum
tn Rs. 60,00,000/- {Rupees Sixty lakhs) per annhum including in the event of loss or inadequacy
of profits during his tenure te Mr. Dev Thakkar [DIN: 07698270], Managing Director, with the
liberty to the Beard of Directors (hereinafter referred te as “the Beard” which term shall be
deemed to include the Nomination and Remuneration Committee constituted by the Board) to
alter or vary the remuneration within the limits as approved by the Members till the remaining
tenure of his appointment.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to take all such steps as
may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

4. APPROVAL OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS UP TO THE MAXIMUM LIMITS AS
SPECIFIED WITH THE RELATED PARTIES

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution.
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 and other applicable provisicns, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the applicable Rules under Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and any other applicable provisions of the Listing Obligation
and Disclosure Requirements, Regulations, 2015 (including any amendment, modification(s) or
re-enactment thereof], the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded
for cntering into transaction(s) with the following related party upto the maximum amount
mentioned there against, in each financial year as mentioned Below:

Sr. | Nature of | Name of | Amountin Rs.
No. | Transaction | the
as per | Related
Section 188 | Party
of . the 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
Companies
Act, 2013
1. Rent Dev Land | 20,000,000 | 25,000,000 30,000,000 35,000,000 | 40,000,000
&
Housing
2, Management | Dev Land | 25,000,000 [ 30,000,000 35,000,000 40,000,000 [ 50,000,000
Fees &
Housing
3. Consultancy Dev Land | 10,000,000 | 15,000,000 20,000,000 25,000,000 | 30,000,000
fees &
Housing
4, Advance Dev Land | 200,000,00 | 250,000,000 | 300,000,000 | 350,000,00 | 400,000,00
against & 0 0 0
acquisition of | Housing

Property

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company and/or a Committee
thereof, be and is hereby, authorized to do or cause to be done all such acts, matters, deeds and
things and to settle any queries, difficulties, doubts that may arise with regard to any transaction
with the related party and execute such agreements, documents and writings and to make such
filings, as may be necessary or desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, in the
best interest of the Company.”

By Order of the Board
SD/-
Dev Thakkar

Managing Director

Place: Mumbai
Date :14t August, 2019

N
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Registered Office;

10th Floor, Dev Plaza, Opp. Andheri Fire Station,
S.V. Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai- 400058.
CIN: U70100MH2004PLC149362

Website: www.manasproperties.co.in

Email Id: info@manasproperties.co.in

Notes:

1.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT PROXY / PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

A Person Can Act as Proxy for only 50 members and holding in aggregate not more than
10 percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. Member
holding more than 10 percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for
any other member.

Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the AGM
are requested to send a duly certified copy of their Board Resolution authorizing their
representatives to attend and vote at the AGM.

The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company, duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the meeting. A Proxy form is sent herewith.

Members / Proxies should bring the Attendance Slip duly filled in for attending the
Meeting and also their copy of the Annual Report.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Register in respect of equity shares of the
Company will remain closed from Tuesday, 24th September, 2019 to Monday, 30t
September, 2019 (both days inclusive).

As a measure of economy, copies of the Annual Reports and Accounts will not be
distributed at the Meeting. Members are therefore, requested to bring their copies to the
Meeting.

In furtherance of Green Initiative in Corporate Governance by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, the Shareholders are requested to register their email id with the Company or with
the Registrar and Transfer Agents.

Members / Proxies are requested to produce the attendance slip duly signed, sent along
with the Annual Report and Accounts, for admission to the meeting hall.

10. Members who are holding shares in identical order or names in more than one folio are
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requested to write to the Company to enable the Company to consolidate their holdings
in one folio.

11. Members whose shareholding is in the electronic mode are requested to direct change
of address notifications and updating of Savings Bank Account details to their respective
Depository Participants.

12. Electronic copy of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting of the Company inter alia
indicating the process and manner of e- voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy
Form is being sent to all the members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/
Depository Participants(s) for communication purposes unless any member has
requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered their email
address, physical copies of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting of the Company
inter alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and
Proxy Form is being sent in the permitted mode.

13. Members may also note that the Notice of the Annual General Meeting and the
Annual Report for 2018-2019 will also be available on the Company’s website
www.manasproperties.co.in for their download. The physical copies of the aforesaid
documents will also be available at the Company’s Registered Office in Mumbai for
inspection during normal business hours on working days. Even after registering for
e-communication, members are entitled to receive such communication in physical
form, upon making a request for the same, by post free of cost. For any
communication, the shareholders may also send requests to the Company’s investor
email id: info@manasproperties.co.in

14. Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, members holding shares in physical
form are advised to file nomination in the prescribed Form SH-13 with the Company’s
share transfer agent. In respect of shares held in electronic/ demat form, the members
may please contact their respective depository participant.

15. Members are requested to send all communications relating to shares, bonds and
unclaimed dividends, change of address etc. to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents
at the following address:

Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd
1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building,
Opp. Vasant Oasis Apartments (Next to Keys Hotel),
Marol Maroshi Road, Andheri East, Mumbai - 400059,

If the shares are held in electronic form, then change of address and change in the Bank
Accounts etc. should be furnished to their respective Depository Participants. (DPs).

16. Voting through electronic means:
In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to

provide members facility to exercise their right to vote at the 15th Annual General
Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting
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Services provided by Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL):

A member can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. either in person or through proxy at the
meeting or through e-voting or by ballot. If a member casts votes by all the three modes,
then voting done through e-voting shall prevail and voting through other means shall be
treated as invalid.

The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting may also attend the
Meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

In case of members receiving e-mail:

(i) The voting period begins at 9.00 a.m. (IST) on Friday, 27t September, 2019 and
end on Sunday, 29th September, 2019 at 5:00 p.m. (IST). During this period,
shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of Monday,
23rd September, 2019 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module
shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii) Open e-mail
(iii)Log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com during the voting period.
(iv) Click on “Shareholders” tab. (v) Now Enter your User ID:

a) For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID;

b) Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered

with the Company.

(v) Next enter the Image Verification Code / Captcha Code as displayed and Click on
Login.

(vi)If you are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on to
www.evotingindia.com and had cast your vote earlier for EVSN of any

Company/entity, then your existing password is to be used.

(vii) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below

Now, fill up the following details in the appropriate boxes:

PAN* Enter your 10-digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax
Department (in Capital) (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well
as physical shareholders)

e Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company / Depository
Participant are requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8
digits of the sequence number (refer serial no. printed on the name and
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address sticker/Postal Ballot Form/mail) in the PAN field.

¢ In case the folio number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number
of 0’s before the number after the first two characters of the name in
CAPITAL letters. E.g. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with folio number
100 then enter RAO0O000100 in the PAN Field.

DOB#

Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the Company
records for the said demataccountor folio in dd/mm/yyyy format

Bank

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the

Company records for the said demat account or folio.

Details# | e Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. If the

details are not recorded with the depository or Company please enter the
member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in
instruction (v)

(viii) After entering these details appropriately, click on“SUBMIT” tab.

(ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then reach directly the EVSN

selection screen.

(x) Members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu

wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new
password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat
holders for voting for resolutions of any other Company on which they are eligible
to vote, provided that Company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and
take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(xi) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-

voting on the resolution contained in this Notice.

(xii) Click on the 190819025 EVSN number of Manas Properties Limited on which you

choose to vote.

(xiii) On the voting page, you will see Resolution Description and against the same

the option “YES / NO” for voting. Select the option “YES” or “NO” as desired. The
option “YES” implies that you assent to the Resolution and option “NO” implies
that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xiv) Click on the “Resolutions File Link” if you wish to view the entire Resolutions.

(xv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”.

A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on
“OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your
vote.

(xvi) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to

modify your vote.
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(xvii) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here
to print” option on the Voting page.

(xviii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed password then enter
the User ID and image verification code/Captcha Code and click on Forgot
Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xix) For Non-Institutional Shareholders:

¢ Non-Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are
required to log on to https:// www.evotingindia.co.in and register themselves as
Corporates.

¢ They should submit a scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and
sign of the entity to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

« After receiving the login details, they have to create a user who would be able to link
the account(s) which they wish to vote on.

e The list of accounts should be mailed tohelpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

e They should upload a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of
Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, in PDF
format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

In case of members receiving the physical copy

(i) Please follow all steps from sl.no. (i) to sl.no. (xxi) above, to cast vote.

Other Instructions:

(A) If you are already registered with CDSL for e-voting then you can use your existing
user ID and password/PIN for casting your vote.

(B) You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of
the folio which may be used for sending future communication(s).

(C) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the
Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at
www.evotingindia.co.in under help section or write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

(D) In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the
Downloads section of www.evoting.CDSL.com

(E) The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the

paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date (record
date) of Monday, 23rd September, 2019.
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(F)

(G)

Mr. Hemant S. Shetye, Partner of M/s. HS Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries
(Membership No. FCS: 2827) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the
e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding two days from the conclusion of
the e-voting period unblock the votes in the presence of at least two (2) witnesses not
in the employment of the Company and make a Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes cast
in favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Company.

(H) The Results shall be declared on or after the AGM of the Company. The Results

declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company’s
website www.manasproperties.co.in and on the website of CDSL within two (2)
days of passing of the resolutions at the AGM of the Company and communicated to
BSE Limited.

(I) Members who do not have access to e-voting facility may send duly completed

Ballot Form (enclosed with the Annual Report) so as to reach the Scrutinizer
appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, Mr. Hemant S. Shetye, Partner
of HS Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, at the Registered office of the
Company Sunday, 29t September, 2019 at 5:00 p.m (IST).

(I Ballot Form received after this date will be treated invalid.

(K) A member can opt only for one mode of voting i.e either through e-voting or by

Ballot. If a Member casts vote by both modes, then voting done through e-voting
shall prevail and Ballot shall be treated as invalid.

17) All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement

sha
bus
the

11 be open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during normal
iness hours (9.00 am to 5.00 pm) on all working days, up to and including the date of
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

18) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has taken a “Green Initiative in Corporate
Governance” (Circular No. 17/2011 dated 21.04.2011 and Circular No. 18/2011 dated
29.04.2011) allowing companies to dispatch documents to the shareholders through
electronic mode. Considering the above theme, your Company had decided to send Annual
Report through electronic mode.

19) Details of Directors Seeking Appointment/ Re-Appointment at the Forthcoming

Annual

General Meeting:

Name Mr. Vijay Thakkar

DIN 00189355

Date of Birth and Age 19.11.1969 & 50 years of age.
Date of Appointment on | 18/11/2004

Board
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Qualifications

B. com

Brief profile, experience and
expertise

Having Business Experience in Real Estate Sector

Number of meetings of the 05 (five)

Board attended during the

year

Directorships held in other 1. Antique Realtors Private Limited

Companies 2. Flamingo Realtors Private Limited
3. Bluepearl Structure Private Limited
4. Growassests Estate Private Limited
5. Clear Vision Publicity Private Limited
6. Dev Land & Housing Private Limited
7. Videv Realtors Private Limited
8. Bluerays Realtors Private Limited
9. Bloomcraft Apparels Private Limited

10. Bluepearl Homes Private Limited
11. Seven Hills Ventures Private Limited
12. Florita Buildcon Private Limited

Committee Positions held in
other Companies

NIL

Shareholding in Manas
Properties Limited

28,49,500 Equity Shares

Relationship  with  other
directors, manager and other
Key Managerial Personnel of

1. Husband of Mrs. Tanam Thakkar, Non- Executive
Director of the Company
2. Father of Mr. Dev Thakkar, Managing Director of the

the Company Company.
3. Son of Mrs. Madhuriben Thakkar, Director of the
Company.
4, Brother of Mr. Kamlesh Thakkar, Chief Financial
Officer of the Company

Terms and Conditions of
appointment or
reappointment

along with

details of remuneration
sought to be paid and
remuneration last drawn

by such person

Mr. Vijay Thakkar, retires by rotation in accordance with
applicable provision of the Articles of Association of the
Company and Companies Act, 2013 applicable to
retirement of directors by rotation.

He being eligible has offered himself for reappointment.
On re-appointment, he will continue to be Director of the
Company

By Order of the Board
SD/-

Dev Thakkar
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Managing Director

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14t August, 2019

Registered Office;

10t Floor, Dev Plaza, Opp. Andheri Fire Station,
S.V.Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai- 400058.
CIN: U70100MH2004PLC149362

Website: www.manasproperties.co.in

Email Id: info@manasproperties.co.in
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

(PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013)

Item No. 3

Mr. Dev Thakkar was appointed as Managing Director of the Company in the Board Meeting held
on 14 January, 2017 and shareholders had given their consent in the Annual General Meeting
held on 15t September, 2017. Shareholders’ approval was also obtained for payment of
remuneration as per Section 197 and Schedule V, the revised remuneration is recommended by
the Nomination and Remuneration committee in its meeting held on 17t July, 2019 and
approved in the Board Meeting held on 17t July, 2019 with immediate effect.

The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 brought changes in the provisions of Section 197 and
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel by removing the requirement of Central Government approval for payment of
remuneration in excess of 5% of net profits of the Company and also increased the limits of
yearly Managerial remuneration in case of no profit or inadequate profit.

The Companies Amendment Act, 2017 replaces the Central Government approval with the
requirement of obtaining shareholders’ approval through a special resolution. Approval of the
shareholders is, therefore, being sought for the revision of remuneration of Mr. Dev Thakkar,
Managing Director of the Company as specified in the resolution and for payment of overall
managerial remuneration in excess of 5% of net profits of the Company computed in accordance
with Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 which shall be approved for the remaining tenure
of the appointment.

The Board of Directors are of the opinion that the revised remuneration of Mr. Dev Thakkar,
Managing Director, is in the best interest of the Company and accordingly, recommend the
resolution as set in Item No. 3 for approval of the members.

Other than Mr. Dev Thakkar holding 10 equity shares, Mr. Vijay Thakkar (father), Mrs. Tanam
Thakkar (mother), none of the other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
and their relatives are concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at
[tem No.3.

Item No.4

The Board of Directors and Members of Audit Committee of the Company, at their meeting held
on 30th May, 2019 has approved the proposal for enter related party transactions with Dev Land
& Housing Private Limited (DLH). In terms of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
applicable rules thereunder require approval of the Shareholders by passing Ordinary
Resolution.
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Further, in terms of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Vijay Thakkar, Mrs. Tanam
Thakkar, Mr. Dev Thakkar, Mrs. Madhuriben Thakkar and Mr. Kamlesh Thakkar being interested
shall abstain from voting on these resolution as shareholders of the Company.

Your Directors recommend the resolution in item 4 of the Notice for approval by the members as
Ordinary Resolution

By Order of the Board

SD/-

Dev Thakkar
Managing Director

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14t August, 2019

Registered Office;

10t Floor, Dev Plaza, Opp. Andheri Fire Station,
S.V. Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai- 400058.
CIN: U70100MH2004PLC149362

Website: www.manasproperties.co.in

Email Id: info@manasproperties.co.in
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Members,

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present the 15t Annual Report of the Company
together with the audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019.

1.FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND THE STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

The Company’s financial performance, for the year ended 31st March, 2019 is summarized
below:

Amtin (Rs.)

Particulars F.Y.2018-2019 | F.Y.2017-2018
Revenue from Operations . 7,00,000
Other Income

16,86,00205 55,76,566
Total Revenue 16,86,00,205 62,76,566
Less: Expenses

3,64,12,345 62,49,550
f;‘;flt before exceptional and extraordinary items and 13,21,87.860 27016
Profit Before Tax 13,21,87,860 27,016
Less: Tax Expenses 2,31,30,432 (9,779)
Profit After Tax 10,90,57,428 36,795

During the year, your Company has made profit Rs. 10,90,57,428/- (Rupees Ten crores ninety
lakhs fifty seven thousand four hundred & twenty eight only), as compare to last year, due to
accrual of income from Lease Rentals.

Your Directors are expecting to achieve better performance and taking efforts to control the cost
and optimize the results in the coming year.

No material changes and commitments have occurred after the close of the financial year 2018-
19 till the date of this Report, which affect the financial position of the Company.

2. SHARE CAPITAL
During the financial year 2018-2019, there is no change in the Share Capital of the Company.

3. DIVIDEND AND RESERVES
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In order to conserve the resources for the ongoing projects of the Company, the Board of
Directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019. The
details of reserves and surplus are provided in note no.4 of the notes to the financial statement.

4.TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION
FUND

Since there was no Dividend declared since inception of the Company, Hence the provisions of
Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply.

5.SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company.
6.MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the financial year 2018-19, as stipulated under
Regulation 34 read with Schedule “V” to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is presented in a separate section
forming part of the Annual Report.

7.UTILIZATION OF IPO PROCEEDS
As on 31st March, 2019, the IPO proceeds were entirely utilized for the purposes as disclosed in
the Prospectus.

8.DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company,
to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2019, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures from the same;

(b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2019 and of the profit of the Company for the
year ended on that date;

(c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

(d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
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(e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

9.INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s internal control systems are commensurate with the nature of its business
and the size and complexity of its operations. These are routinely tested and certified by
Statutory Auditors. Significant audit observations and follow up actions thereon are reported
to the Audit Committee.

10.RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has formulated and implemented a Risk Management Policy that outlines the
framework and procedures to assess and mitigate the impact of risks. Under the guidance of the
Board of Directors of the Company, Key Managerial Personnel and senior employees who are
conversant with risk management systems and procedures have been entrusted with the risk
management of the Company in accordance with the formulated policy. The Audit Committee
has additional oversight in the area of financial risks and controls. All risks are systematically
addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis.

11.DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of
the Company, Mr. Vijay Thakkar, Whole-time Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment. The
Board of Directors of the Company commends his re-appointment.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Directors. However, during the year 2018-2019, Mr. Vijay Thakkar,
Whole-time Director was disqualified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Mumbai being a director
in Seven Hills Ventures Private Limited due to Non- filing of financial statements of the said
Company. However, vide Order dated 26.10.2018, the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi stayed the
impugned list of disqualified directors to the extent it includes the name of the Directors of
Seven Hills Ventures Private Limited and consequently the DIN of the directors has been
activated.

The remuneration paid to the Directors is in accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration
Policy formulated in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19
of the Listing Regulations (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for
the time being in force).

The information required under section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) in respect of Directors/
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employees of the Company is set out in the Annexure 1 to this report and is also available on the
website of the Company www.manasproperties.co.in.

The Independent Directors have submitted their disclosure to the Board that they fulfill all the
requirements as stipulated in section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013 so as to qualify
themselves to be appointed as Independent Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the relevant rules.

The Company has devised a Policy for performance evaluation of the Board of Directors,
Committees and other individual Directors (including Independent Directors) which includes
criteria for performance evaluation of the Non-executive Directors and Executive Directors. The
evaluation process interalia considers attendance of Directors at Board of Directors and
Committee meetings, effective participation, domain knowledge, compliance with code of
conduct, vision and strategy, benchmarks established by global peers, etc.

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own
performance, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit
Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
and Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

The performance evaluation of the Chairman and Non-Independent Directors was carried out by
Independent Directors. The reports on performance evaluation of the Individual Directors were
reviewed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Chairman of the Board held
discussions with each Board member and provided feedback to them on the evaluation .
12.BOARD MEETING

During the year, 07 (Seven) meetings of the Board of Directors were held.

13.AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the period under review, 05 (Five) Meeting were held.

As on 31st March, 2019, the Audit Committee comprises as follows;

Mr. Anil Dhar - Chairman

Ms. Daisy Maring Sairel Maku - Member

Mr. Dev Thakordas Thakkar - Member

During the financial year 2018-2019, there were no instances of non-acceptance of any
recommendation of the Audit Committee by the Board of Directors.

14.NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As on 31st March, 2019, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises as follows;

Mr. Anil Dhar - Chairman
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Miss. Daisy Maring Sairel Maku - Member
Mrs. Tanam Vijay Thakkar - Member

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
formulated Nomination and Remuneration Policy for determining the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and also criteria for
determining the remuneration of directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. The
policy is available on the Company’s website at the link www.manasproperties.co.in

15.CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
During the period under review, 2 (Two) Meetings were held.

As on 31st March, 2019, the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee comprises as
follows;

Mr. Anil Dhar- Chairman

Mrs. Tanam Vijay Thakkar - Member

Mr. Dev Vijay Thakkar - Member

CSR activities of the Company are guided by its CSR Policy, which is framed and approved by the
Board of Directors of the Company.

The Company is not required to spend CSR activity during the period 2018 -2019 as per Section
135 of the Companies Act 2013, due to low profit, net worth and turnover in financial year.
However, in the forthcoming financial year, CSR shall become applicable on the basis of profit
made as on 31st March, 2019. The Company is in the process of finding the suitable projects for
undertaking activities of CSR.

16.ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

As per the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has adopted the
Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy to provide appropriate avenues to the employees to
bring to the attention of the management any issues which is perceived to be in violation of or in
conflict with the fundamental business principals of the Company. The employees are free to
report to the management concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or
violation of the codes of conduct or any improper activity to the Audit Committee of the
Company or Chairman of the Company.

The Whistle Blower Policy has been appropriately communicated within the Company. The
policy empowers the Chairman of the Audit Committee/Chairman of the Company to investigate
any protected disclosure including matters concerning financials/ accounting, etc. received from
the employees under this policy. During the financial year 2018-19, the Company has not
received any complaint through Vigil Mechanism. The Whistle Blower Policy is available on the
Company’s website at the link www.manasproperties.co.in

17.PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENT MADE, GUARANTEES GIVEN AND
SECURITIES PROVIDED
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Loan or guarantee given or security provided and Investment made by the Company as on F. Y.
Ended 31st March, 2019 are within the limit as prescribed under section 186 of the Act and the
necessary approval of the members of the Company has been taken in the Extra General Meeting
held on 24t December, 2016 upto the limit of Rs.100 Crores.

18.CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

In line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board of
Directors of the Company has approved a policy on related party transactions. The policy on
related party transactions has been placed on the Company’s website at the link
www.manasproperties.co.in

All Related Party Transactions are placed on a quarterly basis before the Audit Committee and
also before the Board of Directors for approval. The particulars of contracts or arrangements
with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) and applicable rules of the Companies Act,
2013 is provided in the prescribed form AOC-2 as Annexure - 2 which forms part of this Report.

19.AUDITORS

Statutory Auditors

M/s. JMR & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, (Firm Registration No. 106912W),
Mumbai, were appointed as Statutory Auditor of the Company for a period of 5 years, in the AGM

held on 15t September,2017.

As per Companies (Amendment) Act,2017 notified on 7th May, 2018 the provisions regarding to
the ratification of Auditor in every AGM has been done away.

Secretarial Auditor

The Board has appointed M/s. H S Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Mumbai, to
conduct Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2018-2019. The Secretarial Audit Report is
annexed as Annexure -3, with this Report. The Secretarial Audit Report contain qualification,
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.

Internal Auditor

The Board has appointed M/s. Bhuta Shah, Chartered Accountants, to conduct Internal Audit for
the financial year 2018-2019.

Auditor observation:
20.AUDITORS’ REPORT
The report of the Auditor's on the accounts of the Company does not contain any

observations / remarks or qualifications and the same does not calls for any clarifications or
explanations to be given in the Directors’ Report.
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21.EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to sub-section 3(a) of Section 134 and sub-section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies
Act 2013, read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014
the extracts of the Annual Return as at March 31, 2019 is annexed as Annexure - 4.

22.CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Your Company is not covered by the schedule of industries which are required to furnish the
information pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule (8) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

The Company has not imported any technology or carried out any business of export or import
and therefore the disclosure requirement against technology absorption are not applicable. The
details of Foreign Exchange outgo are as under:

Expenditure in Foreign Currency:

F.Y.2017-2018 Rs. Nil
F.Y.2018-2019 Rs. Nil

23.PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The statement containing particulars of employees as required pursuant to Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not applicable since none of the
employees are in receipt of remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the said rules.

24. DEPOSITS

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review.
Further the Company has not defaulted in repayment of any deposits or payment of interest
thereon since the Company has not accepted any deposit covered under Chapter V of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Disclosure under Rule 2 (c)(viii) of the Companies ( Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 :

During the year, the Company has accepted Rs. 75,85,457/- (Rupees Seventy Five Lakhs Eighty
Five Thousand Four Hundred & Fifty Seven) from Vijay Thakkar, Whole-Time Director who had
furnished to the Company a declaration in writing to the effect that the amount is not being given
out of funds acquired by him by borrowing or accepting loans or deposits from others:

25.0THER DISCLOSURES

The Board of Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the
following items as there were no transactions on these items during the financial year 2018-
2019: -
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- Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

- Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any
scheme.

— The Company does not have any Employees’ Stock Option Scheme.

- The Company does not have any scheme of provision of money for the purchase of its own
shares by employees or by trustees for the benefit of employees.

- No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which
impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

- No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board of Directors of the Company expresses its sincere appreciation for the continuous
assistance and co-operation received from the Banks, Government Authorities, Customers and
Shareholders. The Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation for the committed
services by the Company’s employees.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
SD/-

Dev Vijay Thakkar
Chairman Cum Managing Director
DIN: 07698270

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14t August, 2019

Registered Office;

10t Floor, Dev Plaza, Opp. Andheri Fire Station,
S.V. Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai- 400058.
CIN: U70100MH2004PLC149362

Website: www.manasproperties.co.in

Email Id: info@manasproperties.co.in

Annual Report 2018-2019 24



Annexure -1

The information required under section 197 of the Act read with rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given below:

a. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the
employees of the Company for the financial year 2018-2019 are as follows::

Name of the Director(s)

Total Remuneration
Amount in Rs.

Ratio of Remuneration of
Director to the Median
Remuneration *

Mr. Dev Vijay Thakkar

24,00,000/-

4

Mr. Vijay Thakordas Thakkar

Miss. Daisy Maring Sairel
Maku

Mr. Anil Kumar Dhar

Mrs. Tanam Vijay Thakkar

Mrs. Madhuriben Thakordas
Thakkar

Notes:

1. * Median remuneration for the financial year 2018-19 is Rs. 600,000/- (Six Lakhs).
2. The Aforesaid details are Calculated on the basis of all employee Remuneration

During the Year.

b. The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, chief executive officer,
chief financial officer, Company secretary in the financial year 2018-2019 are as

follows:
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Remuneration ( in Rs.) %o increas:e_ in
Name of Director(s) .regllul}era “fnl
2018-2019 2017-201g | 'Mthelnanda
year
Mr. Vijay Thakordas Thakkar - - -
Mr. Dev Vijay Thakkar 24,00,000/- 24,00,000/- 0%
Mrs. Madhuriben Thakordas - - -
Thakkar
Mrs. Tanam Vijay Thakkar - - -
Mr. Anil Kumar Dhar - - -
Ms. Daisy Maring Sairel Maku - - -
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Remuneration (in Rs.) :/gr:::lc;:::tei(i;
CFO & Company Secretary in the financial
2018-2019 2017-2018 year
Mr. Kamlesh Thakordas Thakkar 6,00,000/- 6,00,000/- 0%
(CFO)
Mr. Dev Vijay Thakkar (CEO) 24,00,000/- 24,00,000/- 0%
*Ms. Leesa Mahesh Parekh (CS) 1,44,000/- 144,000/- 0%

c. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of all employees in the financial
year 2018-2019:
(Amount in Rs.)

Particular 2018-2019 2017-2018 Increase (%)
Median

Remuneration of 6,00,000/- 3,72,000 61.29%
employees Per

annum

d. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 31st March, 2019: 3
(Three).

e. Comparison of average percentage increase in salary of employees other than Key
Managerial Personnel and the percentage increase in the remuneration paid to
key Managerial personnel:

(Amount in Rs.)

Particular 2018-2019 | 2017-2018 I(:)l/c;'ease/ decrease
0

Average salary of all -- 1,05,000/-
employees (other than Key
Managerial Personnel)

Key Managerial Personnel
- Salary of MD & CEO | 24,00,000/- 24,00,000/- 0%
- Salary of CFO & CS 744,000/- 744,000/- 0%

f. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: it is
affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel is as
per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company.

g. The statement containing particulars of employees as required under section 197(12) of
the Act read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of

Annual Report 2018-2019 26



Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is provided in a separate annexure forming part of
this report. Further, the report and the accounts are being sent to the members excluding
the aforesaid annexure. In terms of section 136 of the Act, the said annexure is open for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company and has been uploaded on the website
of the Company www.manasproperties.co.in. Any shareholder interested in obtaining a
copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary.
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Annexure - 2

Form No. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

Sr. No. | Particulars Details
Name (s) of the related party & nature of
relationship
Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction No contract or

Duration of the

contracts/arrangements/transaction

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transaction including the value, if any

Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions’

Date of approval by the Board

Amount paid as advances, if any

Date on which the special resolution was passed in
General meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188

arrangements made with
related parties during the
period under review.

3. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

(a) (b) Nature | (c) Duration of | (d) Salient terms (e) Date(s) of | (f)
Name(s) | ofcontracts | the contracts/ | of the contracts or | approval by | Amount
of the | /arrangeme | arrangements/ | arrangements or | the Board, if | paid as
related nts/transac | transactions: transactions any: advances,
party and | tions: including the value, if any:
nature of if any:

relations

hip:

Dev Land | Commission | 2018-2019 ---- 23rd May, 2018 -

& Housing | Received

Private

Limited

Dev Land | Management | 2018-2019 - 23rd May, 2018 --

& Housing | Fees

Private

Limited
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Dev Land | Rent 2018-2019
& Housing
Private
Limited

23rd May, 2018

On behalf of the Board of Directors
SD/-

Dev Thakkar

Chairman Cum Managing Director
DIN: 07698270

Place: Mumbai

Date: 14th August, 2019
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Annexure -3

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31T MARCH, 2019.

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Manas Properties Limited.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Manas Properties Limited (hereinafter called
"The Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion
thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period ended on
March 31, 2019, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers and minute books, Forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2019, to the
extent applicable provisions of:

[.  The Companies Act, 2013 ("The Act") and the Rules made thereunder;

II. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA") and the Rules made
thereunder;

I11. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

IV.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act") to the extent applicable to the Company: -

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

C. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009 as effective till 09th November, 2018 and
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Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 as effective from 10th November, 2018;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993

e. The Company has complied with the requirements under the Equity Listing
Agreements entered into with BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India

Limited
V. Since the Company has no business income from the main operation, the Management

has not identified and confirmed the Sector Specific laws as applicable to the Company
being in Real Estate Sector.

We have also examined compliances with the applicable clauses of the following:

i) Secretarial Standards 1 and 2 issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India along
with revised Secretarial Standard 1 and 2 as issued by the institute of Company Secretaries of
India with effect from 1st October, 2017.

ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015).

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, and Standards, etc. as mentioned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the year under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate

with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the Audit period:

1. Obtained Shareholders approval pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and all
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for revision of remuneration
payable to Statutory Auditors of the Company.
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2. Mr. Vijay Thakkar, Whole-time Director was disqualified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Mumbai being a director in Seven Hills Ventures Private Limited due to Non- filing of
financial statements of the said Company. However, vide Order dated 26.10.2018, the
Hon’ble High Court of Delhi has stayed the impugned list of disqualified directors to the
extent it includes the name of the Directors of Seven Hills Ventures Private Limited and
consequently the DIN of the directors has been activated.

3. Obtained Shareholders approval for Related Party Transaction pursuant to the provisions
of Sections 188.

Date: 14t August, 2019 For HS Associates
Place: Mumbai Company Secretaries

Hemant Shetye
Partner

FCS No.:2827
CP No.: 1483
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To,

Annexure- A

The Members,
Manas Properties Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial records based
on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Date: 14t August, 2019 For HS Associates
Place: Mumbai Company Secretaries

Hemant Shetye
Partner

FCS No.:2827
CP No.: 1483
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Annexure - 4.

Form No. MGT - 9.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on 31stMarch 2019

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Sr.
No. I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS.
i CIN L70100MH2004PLC149362
ii Registration Date 02nd November, 2004
iii | Name of the Company Manas Properties Limited
iv | Category / Sub-Category of Company Limited by Shares
the Company
Indian Non-Government Company
% Address of the Registered 10th Floor, Dev Plaza, Opp. Andheri Fire Station S. V. Road, Andheri (West),
office and contact details: - Mumbai - 400058
info@manasproperties.co.in
vi | Whether listed Company Yes
vii | Name, Address and Contact Bigshare Services Pvt Ltd

details of Registrar and
Transfer

1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building, Opp. Vasant Oasis Apartments (Next
to Keys Hotel), Marol Maroshi Road, Andheri East, Mumbai - 400059.

I.PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY.

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the

Company shall be stated: -

Sr. | Name and Description of Main products / services NIC Code of the | % to total turnover of the
No. Product/ Company
service
1 Real Estate Business 6810 100
III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Sr. Name and address CIN/GLN Holding/ Subsidiary %of Shares held Applicable
NO of the Company / Associate Section
NIL
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equit

i) Category-wise Share Holding
Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of No. of Shares held at the end of the year | %
Shareholders the year [As on 01-04-2018] [As on 31-03-2019] Chan
Demat Physica | Total % of Demat Physical | Total % of fiirin
1 Total Total g
Shares Shares | the
year
A. PROMOTER’S

(1) Indian

a) Individual/ 2849550 Nil 2849550 | 68.50 | 2849550 Nil 2849550 | 68.5 Nil

HUF

b) Central Govt Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

c) State Govt(s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

d) Bodies Corp. 200450 Nil 200450 4.82 200450 Nil 200450 4.82 Nil

e) Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

e) Any Other 50 Nil 50 0.00 50 Nil 50 0.00 Nil

(Director relative)

Sub-total (A) (1) | 3050000 Nil 305000 | 73.32 | 305000 Nil 305000 | 73.32 Nil

0 0 0

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs - Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Individuals

b) Other - Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Individuals

c) Bodies Corp. Nil NIL NIL NIL Nil NIL NIL NIL Nil

d) Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

e) Any Other Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Sub-total (A) (2) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total 3050000 Nil 305000 | 73.32 | 305000 Nil 305000 | 73.32 Nil

Shareholding of 0 0 0

promoter (A) =

(A) (1) +(A) (2)

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

b) Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

c) Central Govt Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

d) State Govt(s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
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e) Venture Capital Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Funds
f) Insurance Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Companies
g) Flls Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
h) Foreign Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Venture Capital
Funds
i) Others (specify) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sub-total (B)(1):- Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
2. Non-
Institutions
a) Bodies Corp. 191100 Nil 191100 4.59 296100 Nil 296100 | 7.12 2.52
i) Indian Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
ii) Overseas Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
b) Individuals
i) Individual 2700 Nil 2700 0.06 1800 Nil 1800 0.04 (0.02)
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto
Rs. 1 lakh
ii) Individual | 565200 Nil 565200 13.00 | 635700 Nil 635700 | 15.28 1.69
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1 lakh
c) Others (specify) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Non Resident 150300 Nil 150300 3.61 150000 150000 3.61 0.01
Indians
Overseas Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Corporate Bodies
Foreign Nationals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Clearing Members | 112200 Nil 112200 2.70 Nil Nil Nil Nil (2.70)
Market Maker 88500 Nil 88500 2.12 26400 26400 | 0.63 (1.49)
Trusts Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Foreign Bodies - D Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
R
Sub-total (B)(2):- | 1110000 0 1110000 | 26.68 | 1110000 0 111000 26.68 Nil
0
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Total Public 1110000 0 1110000 | 26.68 | 1110000 0 1110000, 26.68 Nil
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)
C. SHARES HELD BY CUSTODIAN FOR GDRS & ADRS
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Grand Total 4160000 Nil 416000 100 416000 Nil 416000 100 Nil
(A+B+(C) 0 0 0
(ii) Shareholding of Promoters
Sr. | Shareholder’s | Shareholding at the beginning of the | Shareholding at the end of the year
No. | Name year
No. of %of total %of No. of %of total %of % change
Share Shares of Shares Share Shares of Shares in
S the Pledged/e S the Pledged/ | sharehol
Company ncumbere Company encumb ding
d to total ered to during
shares total the year
shares
1 |Vijay 2849500 68.50 Nil | 2849500 68.50 Nil Nil
Thakordas
Thakkar
2 Dev Land & 200450 4.82 Nil | 200450 4.82 Nil Nil
Housing
Private
Limited
3 |Kamlesh T 10 Negligible Nil 10 Negligible Nil Nil
Thakkar
4 Tanam V 10 Negligible Nil 10 Negligible Nil Nil
Thakkar
5 Madhuriben 10 Negligible Nil 10 Negligible Nil Nil
T Thakkar
6 Alka ] 10 Negligible Nil 10 Negligible Nil Nil
Somaiya
7 DevV 10 Negligible Nil 10 Negligible Nil Nil
Thakkar
Total 305000 73.32 Nil | 305000 73.32 Nil Nil
0 0
(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
Sr. | Particulars Shareholding at the beginning of the year | Cumulative Shareholding during the
No. year
No. of | % of total No. of | % of total shares
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shares

Company

shares of the

shares

of the Company

There is no change in the promoter shareholding during the year

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders

of GDRs and ADRs):
Sr. | Name & Type of Shareholding at the Transaction during the year | Cumulative
No | Transaction beginning Shareholding at the end
of the year
No. of share | % of Total Date of No. of No. of % of total
held share of the | Transaction share shares shares of the
Company held Company.
1 Dimple Kamal Dalia | 210000 5.05 Nil Nil 210000 5.05
- - - - 210000 5.05
At the end of the
year
2 Devendranauth 150000 3.61 Nil Nil 150000 3.61
Misir
At the end of the - - - - 150000 3.61
year
3 Pankaj Jayantilal 124800 3.00 Nil Nil 124800 3.00
Patel
At the end of the - - - - 124800 3.00
year
4 Prashant Jayantilal | 124800 3.00 Nil Nil 124800 3.00
Patel
At the end of the - - - - 124800 3.00
year
5 Tuscany Square 50100 1.20 Nil Nil 50100 1.20
Feet LLP
At the end of the - - - - 50100 1.20
year
6 Angel Acreage LLP 50100 1.20 Nil Nil 50100 1.20
At the end of the - - - - 50100 1.20
year
7 Harsh Somaiya 81000 1.95 Nil Nil 81000 1.95
At the end of the - - Nil Nil 81000 1.95
year
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8 Vinod Harilal Zaveri | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Transfer - - 06.04.2018 82500 82500 1.98
At the end of the 82500 1.98
year

9 Nopea capital Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
services private
limited
Transfer - - 08.06.2018 13500 13500 0.32
Transfer - - 13.07.2018 13500 27000 0.65
Transfer - - 20.07.2018 20700 47700 1.15
Transfer - - 10.08.2018 42600 90,300 217
Transfer - - 14.09.2018 (600) 89700 2.16
At the end of the - - - - 89700 2.16
year

10 | Keynote Fincorp Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Limited
Transfer - - 04.01.2019 106200 106200 2.55
At the end of the - - - 106200 2.55
year
Keynote Capitals 106200 2.55 Nil Nil Nil Nil

11 LTD
Transfer - - 04.01.2019 (106200) Nil Nil
At the end of the - - - - Nil Nil
year

12 Shri Ravindra 51900 1.25 - - - -
media Ventures
Transfer - - (51900) 1.25 51900 1.25
At the end of the - - - - 51900 1.25
year

13 | Aryaman Capital 88500 2.13 Nil Nil Nil Nil
Markets Limited
Transfer - - 06.04.2018 (81900) 6600 0.16
Transfer - - 04.05.2018 6000 12600 0.30
Transfer - - 25.05.2018 2400 15000 0.36

Annual Report 2018-2019 39




Transfer 08.06.2018 7200 22,200 0.53
Transfer 22.06.2018 9600 31800 0.76
Transfer 29.06.2018 300 32,100 0.77
Transfer 06.07.2018 300 32400 0.78
Transfer 13.07.2018 (8400) 24000 0.58
Transfer 20.07.2018 (19800) 4200 0.10
Transfer 10.08.2018 20700 24900 0.60
Transfer 07.09.2018 300 25200 0.61
Transfer 14.09.2018 600 25800 0.62
Transfer 19.10.2018 300 26100 0.63
07.12.2018 300 26400 0.63
At the end of the - - 26400 0.63
year
(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
Sr. | Name of Director Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding at the end
No | and KMP beginning of the year as Shareholding during the | of the year as on
on 01.04.2017 Year 31.03.2019
No. of share | % of Total No. of share | % of Total No. of % of total
held share of the | held share of the | shares shares of the
Company Company held Company.
1 Mr. Vijay Thakkar - 2849500 68.50 - - 2849500 | 68.50
Whole Time Director
2 Mr. Dev Thakkar - 10 Negligible - - 10 Negligible
Managing Director
3 Mrs. Tanam Thakkar | 10 Negligible - - 10 Negligible
- Director
4 Mrs. Madhuriben 10 Negligible - - 10 Negligible
Thakkar - Director
5 Mr. Kamlesh 10 Negligible - - 10 Negligible
Thakkar - Chief
Financial Officer
V.INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning
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of the financial year
i)Principal Amount Nil 6,739,558/- Nil 6,739,558/-
ii)Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil
iii)Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total(i+ii+iii) Nil 6,739,558/- Nil 6,739,558/-
Change in Indebtedness
during the financial year
Additions Nil 2,538,207 Nil 2,538,207
Deletions Nil Nil Nil Nil
Net Change Nil 2,538,207 Nil 2,538,207
Indebtedness at the end
of the financial year
i)Principal Amount Nil 9,277,765/- 9,277,765/-
ii) Interest due but not Nil Nil Nil Nil
paid
iii)Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total(i+ii+iii) Nil 9,277,765/- 9,277,765/-
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
Sr. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD / WTD/ Manager
no.
1 Directors Remuneration Mr. Dev Vijay Thakkar - Managing
Director (Amt in Rs)
Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 24,00,000/-
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 Nil
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, Nil
1961
2 Stock Option Nil
3 Sweat Equity Nil
4 Commission Nil
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
5 Others, please specify Nil
Total 24,00,000/-

B. Remuneration to other directors

Sr. no. | Particulars of Remuneration

| Name of Director

| Total Amount

NIL
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD.

Sr. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of CFO (Amt in Rs) Name of CS (Amt in Rs)
no.
1 Directors Remuneration Mr. Kamlesh Thakordas Miss. Leesa Mahesh
Thakkar - Chief Financial Parekh - Company
Officer, (Amt in Rs.) Secretary, (Amt in Rs.)
Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 600,000/- 144,000/-
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Nil Nil
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section Nil Nil
17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option Nil Nil
3 Sweat Equity Nil Nil
4 Commission Nil Nil
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
5 Others, please specify Nil Nil
Total 600,000/- 144,000/-
VII. PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type Section of Brief Details of Authority Appeal made, if any
the Description | Penalty/ [RD/NCLT (give Detail
Companies Punishment/ | /COURT]
Act Compounding
fees imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty NA NA NA NA NA
Punishment NA NA NA NA NA
Compounding NA NA NA NA NA
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty NA NA NA NA NA
Punishment NA NA NA NA NA
Compounding NA NA NA NA NA
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty NA NA NA NA NA
Punishment NA NA NA NA NA
Compounding NA NA NA NA NA

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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SD/-

DEV VIJAY THAKKAR

CHAIRMAN CUM MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 07698270

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14th August, 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

The overall economy continue to decline during the year under the review and all economic
indicators such as GDP, Industrial Growth rate, etc. speak out the dismal business conditions
prevalent during the year under review.

The infrastructure sector is closely linked with the national economy and therefore bore the
brunt of the slowdown. However, considering that targets of growth of the economy cannot be
achieved without infrastructure growth, ambitious plans for investment into various sectors of
infrastructure It is therefore expected that going forward some of the factors that have held up
infrastructure growth will be resolved.

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT

We are engaged in the business of real estate development and construction. Our operation will
span all aspects of real estate development, from the identification and acquisition of land, the
planning, execution and marketing of our projects, through to the maintenance and management

of our completed developments.

The real estate sector is showing some improvement and your Directors are expecting better
Industrial Development in the coming years.

SEGMENTWISE PERFORMANCE

The Company is only engaged in the business of Real estate sector, therefore the requirement of
segment wise reporting is not applicable.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

The Company is taking maximum efforts to capitalize on business opportunities & further expect
a better outlook in the coming years.

The major threats for the Company are competition from the Govt. Policies.

RISKS AND CONCERNS

Your Company is taking adequate measures to safeguard against Risks & Concerns.
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Your Company has been maintaining an adequate internal control system commensurate with
the size & nature of its business.
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The Company conducts its business with integrity and high standard of ethical behavior and in
compliance with the laws and regulations that govern its business.

HUMAN RESOURCES POLICIES

Your Company has employed 03 (Three) number of employees. Your Company considers its
human resources as its most valuable assets, among all other assets of the Company. It has been
the policy of the Company to actuate the talent by providing opportunities to develop themselves
within the organization. The Company continued to have maintained very cordial & harmonious
relations with its employees.

RATIOS ANALYSIS
SR.NO PARTICULARS 2018-2019 2017-2018
1. Debtors Turnover Nil 0.14
2. Inventory Turnover Nil Nil
3. Interest Coverage Ratio Nil Nil
4. Current Ratio 0.84 0.35
5. Debt Equity Ratio 0.04 0.07
6. Operating Profit Margin Nil 3.86
7. Net Profit Margin Nil 3.86
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Due to unfavorable market conditions your Company is facing profitability problems however,
your management is making optimum efforts to minimize the overheads & cost reduction.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

SD/-

Dev Vijay Thakkar
Chairman Cum Managing Director
DIN: 07698270

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14t August, 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Manas Properties Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Manas Properties Limited (“the
Company”), which comprises of the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Profit
and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements gives a true and fair view in conformity, with the aforesaid
accounting standard and other accounting principles generally accepted in India prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as
amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at 31 March 2019, the profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical respensibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinicon
on the financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the

matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

The Company recognized revenue of Rs.
16,86,00,205 for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Accuracy of recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosures of revenues and other related
balances.

This is a key audit matter because of the

e Significance of the revenue amount to the
statement of financiat position and

» First time recognition of rent revenue and the
quantum of the same.

Sr. Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response
No. '
Revenue Recognition: .
1 " g n ‘ We*® assessed the Company’s

process to recognise the impact of
the new revenue denerating
operation.

Our audit approach consisted of
the following :-

o Evaluated the design of

. internal controls relating to
recognition of the new
operation

e Considered the terms of
the contracts to determine
the transaction price
including any variabie
consideration to verify the
transaction price used to
compute revenue and to
test the basis of estimation
of ~ the variable
consideration. -

information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon .

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of-the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report,
Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the financial
statements and our report thereon. :
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements
. 1 v

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, read with relevant rules issued thereunder. This responsibility alsc
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. ’

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error ‘and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. ‘

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercjsa-pofessional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also, %w:vso%,}
P

/' Nikesh Jain
=(M. No, 114003

*
%
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« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
. . { L

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concerm.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. .

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of

the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that - we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards. : i

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter shoutd not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

Annual Report 2018-2019

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order’), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the "Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order, to the extent applicable.

. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by taw'have ‘been kept by the Company so

far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account.

. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the specified relevant

accounting standard, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors<as on 31 March 2019

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March,
2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.
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g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements.
i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts, including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;
ii.  There has been no amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For JMR & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountanis o !

Membership No. 114003

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 May 2019 _
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“Annexure A"

To the Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements of Manas Properties
Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2019

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report to the Members of Manas Properties Limited of even date.)

In respect of property, plant and equipment:

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

b) As informed to us, the property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the
management during the period according to a phased programme. In our opinion, such
programme is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. As informed, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification by the
management.

¢) According to information & explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the
name of the Company.

In respect of its inventories:

v

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not have any
inventory. Accordingly, Clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act and accordingly, the
provisions of Clause (iii) (a) to {c) of Para 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loan under section 185 of the Act. The Company has
complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act, with respect to the investment and
guarantees. The Company has neither given any security nor given any loans during the
year. T

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not-accepted
any deposits from the public as per the provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Act and rules
framed thereunder, and accordingly, the provisions of Clause (v) of Para 3 of the Order are
not applicable to the Company. '




Vi.

Vii.

viil.

ix.

Xi.

Xii.

xiii.
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According to the information and explanation given to us, Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, for
any of the services rendered by the company.

In respect of statutory dues:

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the records of
the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally reguiar in
depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, Employees’ State Insurance, income-tax, Goods and Service tax, cess or /and any
other material statutory dues wherever applicable. Also, according to the information and
explanations given to us there were no outstanding statutory dues as on 31 March 2019
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues outstanding
in respect of Income-tax, VAT, Excise duty, Service tax, Custom duty, Goods and Service
tax, Cess orfand any other material statutory dues wherever applicable, which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. The Comp"any did not have any
borrowings from financial institutions, government or dues to debenture hoiders.

Based on our audit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given to us,
the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. According to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company did not raise any money by way of term loans.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers
or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and. explanatidns given by
the management, the managerial remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with
the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to
the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and expianations given,'to us, 'thé nature of
activities of the Company does not attract any special statue applicable to Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, Clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of jee=~Gqmpany, transactions with the related parties are in complia_nce with

<S0¢y/
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XV,

Xvi,

Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly,
Clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with the directors, requiring compliance with Section 192 of
the Companies Act. Accordingly, Clause (xv) of paragraph 3 of.the Order is not applicable to
the Company. " '

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3 (xvi) of the Order is not appticable to the Company.

For JMR & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registrati i

Partrier
Membership No. 114003

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 May 2019
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“Annexure B”

To the Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements of Manas Properties
Limited for the year ended 31°% March, 2019

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of Manas Properties Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial re;i‘orti‘ng of Manas Properties
Limited (‘the Company”) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria establlshed by the Company
considering the essential components of internal controt stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordanee with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10)
of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply withi ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about ‘whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Kikesh Jairn
-
'-2' M. Mo, 114003} )]
Mumbai
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

{

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financia! reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections-of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company, have in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Fmancnal Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For JMR & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reiistration v, S+

Partner
Membership No. 11400

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 May 2019
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Manas Properties Limited (Formerly known as Manas Properties Private Limited)

{Currency: Indian Rupees)

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019

. As at As at
Particufars Note No. 3ot March 2019 31st March 2013
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital 3 4,16,00,000 4.16,00,000
Reserves and Surplus 4 16,58,05,386 5.67,47,958
20,74,05,386 $,83,47 958
Non-Current Liabilities
Long Term Borrowings 5. 92,77,765 67,39,658
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) - :
Other Long Term Liabilities 6 21,00,00,000 21,00,00,000
21,92,77,765 21,67,39,558
Current Liabilities
Short Term Borrowings -
Trade Payables o . C
MSME : - 7 ’ - -
Cthers 7 1,438,389 1,498,388
Other Gurrent Liabitities 8 7.18,17,.234 7,01,056,932
7.19,66,623 7,02,55,320
49,86,49,774 38,53,42,836
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Fixed Assets ) 9
Tangible Assets 4,362 11,840
Non-Current Investments 10 32,64,39,151 32,64,39,151
Deferred Tax Asset . 1,146 622
Long Term Loans and Advances 11 11,20,83,252 3.43,54,497
Other Non-Current Assets i . - -
43,85,27,911 36,08,08,110
Current Assets
Trade Recsivabies 12 93,161 50,93,161
Cash and Bank Balances 13 2,99,62,661 5,206
Short Term Loans and Advances 14 3,00,66,041 1,94,38,359
6,01,21,863 2,45,36,726
49,86,49,774 38,63,42,836
Significant accounting policies 2
Notes to the Financial Statements 3-32

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached

For JMR & Associates LLP
Chartored Accountants

Eor and on be@of the Board of the Direétors

vl

Nikesh'Jai .

Partner = _.l .
Mem bershw{-’d 114003

o

. ~Kamlesh Thakkar
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbat, 30 May 2019 Mumbai, 30 May 2019
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Manas Properties Limited (Formerly known as Manas Properties Private Limited)
(Currency: Indian Rupoe s‘)

Profit and Loss Statement for the year ended 31 March 2018 {Currency: Indian Rupees)
Particulars Note No. Current Year ~ Previous Year
Revenue from Operations 15 - 7,00,000
Other Incomes 16 16,86,00,205 55,76,566
Total Revenue 16,86,00,205 62,76,566
Expenses:
Employee Benefits Expenses 17 31,44,000 32,495,000
Finance Costs 18 . 69,023 56,933
Deprecialion and Amortization Expenses 19 7,478 17,391
Other Expenses 20 3,31,91,844 29,26,226
Total Expenses 3,64,12,345 62,49,550
Profit before tax . " L 13,21,87,860 27,018
Tax Expenses:
Curreni tax 2,76,32 570 42,330
MAT expense / (credit) {44,92,375) (50,027)
Deferred tax expense / {credit) 524) (2,082)
Short / (Excess) provision of tax relating to previous year (9.239) -
Profit after tax 10,90,57,428 36,795
Earning per equity share: (Face Value of Rs. 10 per share)
{1) Basic earnings per share ¥26.22 0.01
(2} Diluted earnings per share . - 2622 0.01
Significant accounting policies 2 i .
Notes to the Financial Stafements 3-32

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached

For JMR & Associates LLP For and on behalf of {hs

Chartered Accountants .

Firm Reg Na. 106912W
ﬁ N .. \i{
Nikesh J ' ‘*"‘< t\W*Wﬁ\TanamThaI(kar

Partner Director Managing Direclor & CEO _
MemberskipANo. DIN : 00284512 OIN : 07698270

o = -

) .--»*Kam]esh Thakkar
Chisf Financial Officer

o

Mumbai, 30 May 2019 Mumbai, 30 May 2019
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Manas Properties Limited (Formerly known as Manas Properties Private Limited)

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 37 March 2019 . {Currancy: Indian Rupees)

As at As at

Particulars 31st March 2019 31st March 2018

Cash flow from_aperating actjvities

Profit / {Loss) before extraordinaty items ang tax 13,21,87,860 27,018
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 7.478 17,391
Dividend Received (2,800) -
Interest on Incoms Tax Refund - (53,849)
Interest on Fixed Deposifs : (318) -
Finance Costs 69,023 -
Operating profit before working capitaf changes . 13,22,61,248 {9,442)
Adjustment for Working Capital Changes: .
{Increase)/Dacraase in Trade Receivables 50,00,000 (50,000,000}
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables d 1 12,156,844
increasef(Decrease) in Provision - -
Increasef{Decrease) in Other Liabilites 62,47 314 (52,78,862)
Cash Generated from Operating Activity ) . 14,35,08,561 (90,71,460)
Income tax paid / TDS (Net of Refund) (2.31,30,857) 7,697
Net cash from operating activities {A) 12,03,77,604 (90,63,763)
Cash flow from investing Activities

Purchase of Tangible Fixed assets .
Dividend received 2,800 -
{Increase)/Decreass in Shorl Term Loans & Advances {1,06.27,682) (2,44,95,392)
(Increase)/Decrease in Long Term Leans & Advances (7.77,28,755)

Net Cash from investing activities _(B) {8,83,53,637) 12,44,95,392)
Cash flow from Financing Activities

Interest on Fixed Deposits 3 -
Short Term Borrowings ' : - 1,00,000
Net Repayment of Long Term Borrowings 25,38,207 (1,69,873)
Finance Cost ’ . (69,023) -
Interest on Income Tax Refund - 53,849
Net Cash from Financing activities {C) 24,69,499 {16,024)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 3,44,93,466 (3,35,75,178)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year {45,30,807) 2,90,44,372
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 2,99,62,659 {45,30,807)

Note: The Cash flow stalement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in "Accounting Standard (AS) 3 - Cash
Flow Statements” as notified by the Companies {Accounts} Rules 2014.

As per our report of even dale altached

For JMR & Assoclates LLP 78 o of the Directors
Chartered Accountais

H
(
i

3

-

e _

% Tana W 22 Ded Thiakkar
Director Managing Director & CEQ
DIN : 00284512 DIN...07698270 - - -

,,,,,,,,,,,, “Kamiesh Thakkar
- Chisf Financial Officer

Mumbal, 30 May 2019 Mumbai, 30 May 2019
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Manas Properties Limited (Formerly known as Manas Propeities Private Limited)

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at 31 March, 2018

No.

Partlculars

1)
]

2.3

24

(0

(ii)
(iil)
(iv)

()

(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

Annual Report 2018-.

Background & General Infermation

Manas Properties Limited, formerly known as Manas Properties Private Limited ("the Company"), got listed at BSE
SME platformi on 30 March 2017, is domiciled in Mumbai, India. The registered office of Company is 10th Floor, Dev
Plaza, Opp. Angheri Fire Station, S.V. Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai, Maharashira, India. The Company was
incorporated on 02 November 2004. The Company is engaged in the business of Construction, Redevelaopment and
Leasing of Properties.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation of Financlal Statements: |

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, vide notification dated March 30, 2018, has issued The Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2016 thereby amending The Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (‘principal rules’).
The said Rules come into effect from the date of notification, i.e., March 30, 2018. The Company believes that Rule
3(2) of the principal rules has not been withdrawn or replaced arfld accordingly, the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2016 will apply for the accounting periods commencing on or after March 30, 2018. In view of the
same, the accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements for the current year are consistent
with those of previous year.

Use of Estimates. .
Preparalion of the financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the ranagement to make estimates
and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabifities) and the
reporied income and expenses during the year. Management believes that the estimates made in the preparation of
the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual resuts could differ from those estimates. Any revision of
accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

<
Cash fiow statement: ) .
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is
adjusted for the effects of fransactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated based on the available information.

Current / Non-current classification:
The Schedule i to the Act requires assets and liabilities to be classified as either Current or Non-current.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
it is expected to be realised in, or Is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal aperating cyce;

it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

it is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date; or

it is cash or a cash equivalent uniess it is restricted from being exchanged or used to seltle a llabiiity for at least
twelve months after the reporting date. ’

All other assets are classified as non-current. -

A fiabifity is classified as current when it satisfies any of the fotlowing criteria: .

it is expected 10 be settled in, the Company's normai operating cycle; ’

it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded,

it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date, or o o

The Company does not have an unconditional right te defer settiement of the liabifity for at least twelve monihs after
the reporting date. Terms of a ilability that could, at the opinion of the counterparty, resuit in»ils setliement by lhe
issue of equity instruments do not affect ils classification. . ot '
All other iiabilities are classified as non-current.

Operating Cycle

Basad on the nature of services and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained ifs operating cycle as 3 1o 4 years for the purpose of
current and non-current classification cf assets and liabii ;
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Revenue Recognltion: .

The Company follows the Percentage Completion Method of Accounting to recognize revenue in respect of civil -
construction projects / development of real eslate.

Determination of revenues under the Percentage Completion Method necessatily involves tnaking estimales by the
Company, some of which are of technical nature, concerning, where relevant, the parcentages of completion, and the
foreseeable losses to completion. The auditors have relied upon such estimates.

Incormne from leasing of property is recognised on a straight line basis over the fease term.

The commission income is recognised on accrual basis.

Other Income:
Inferest income is accounted on accrual basis.
Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive is established.

Fixed Assets: .

Flxed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortization and impairment losses, If any. Cost
comprises of purchase price and any altributable cost such as duties, freight, borrowing costs, erection and
commissioning expenses incurred in bringing the asset {o its working condition for its intended use.

Capital work-in-progress includes the cost of fixed assets that are not ready 1o use at the balance sheet date and
advances pald to acquire fixed assets on or before the balance sheet date.

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on the Wriiten Down Value {(WDV) method as per the usefut
life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Aét. 2013.- ! o

In respect of addition to fixed assets depreciation has been charged on pro-rata basis from the date of addition to the
assets.

Inventories:

inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Conslruction wark-in-progress includes cost of land,
premium for development rights, and interest and expenses incidental to the projects undertaken by the Company.
Inventories of finished units / stock in trade, if any, are valued at cost or estimated net realizable value whichevers is
lower.

Investments:
Long term Investments are carried at Cost plus brokerage and other charges. Psoviston is made to recognise a
decline, other than temporary in value of investments and is determined separately for each individual investment.

Current invesiments are carried af lower of cost and fair value, computed separately in respect of each categary of
investment.
Investrnent properties are carried individually at cost less impairment, it any.

Employee Benefits

Short-Term Empioyee Benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within welve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term
employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries and wages, leave salary etc. and the expected cost of ex-gratia are
recognized in the period in which the employee renders the relaled services,

Post Employment Benefits:

Defined_contribution & benefit plans:

The provisions of the Employses' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and the Gratuity Act, 1972
are not applicable to the Company. The Company does not have any other retirement ber};efit scheme for emptoyees.

Borrowing Cost: .

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction of production of qualifying assets are treated as
diredt cost and are considered as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarity
requires a substantlal period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. - :

H

Segment reporting: ’
The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in conformity with the accounting policies adopied for the

Company.



2.13 Leasos: .
Lease arrangements where the risk and rewards incidental to ownership of an assel substantiatly vest with the lessor -
are recognized as operating lease. Lease payments under operafing leases are recognised as an expense on accrual
basis in accordance with respective lease agreements.

214 Earnings per share:
The Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net profit/{loss) attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period. Diluted EPS is computed by
dividing the net profit/(loss) attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of
equity and dilutive equity equivalent shares oulslanding during the year, except where the resufts would be anti-
dilutive.

2.15 Taxes on Income: )

(i) Income tax expense comprises of current tax, (i.e. amount of tax for the Year determined in accordance with the
Income Tax Act} and deferred tax charge ar credil {reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between accounting
income and taxable income for the Year). . ’

(i) Tax an current income for the current Year is determined on the basis of estimated taxabie income and tax credits
computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1861.

(il)  The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognised using the tax
rates that are enacted or are substantially enacfed by the balance shéet dats. Deferred tax assets are recognised
only to the extent there is reasonabie certainty that the assets can be realised In future; however; where there is
unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward toss under Taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recagnised only if there
is virtlual certainty that such assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
written down or wiilien up to reflect the amount that is reasonable / virtually certain (as the case may be) to be
realised.

2.16 Impalrment of Assets:

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, if
any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount is
the greater of lhe net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor. If such recovegable amount of the assel or
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is
recognized in the Profit and Loss Statement. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously
assessad impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflocted at the
recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciable historical cosi.

217 Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Asseis!
The Company creates a provislon where there is present obligation as a resuft of a past event that probably requires
an outflow of rescurces and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a
contingent liability is made where there is a possible obfigation that may, but probably will not require an outflow of
resources. When there is a possible obligation in respect of which the likeflhood of outflow of resources is remote, no
provision os disclosure is made.

For JMR & Associates LLP For a,&d on behalf of the, Board of the Direciors
Chartered Accountants 3y P M" . B
£ e : i Y“?\‘ - i }p
P \‘ N % N ES: N b pe o
\s\hg(\ — 3
o © anamThakkay

Dav Thakkar
Director i

DIN : 00284513

Partner

Memberghip No. 114003
ST
[
.~ Kamlesh Thakkar
« Chief Financial Officer
Murnbai, 30 May 2019 Mumbai, 30 May 2019
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Manas Properties Limfted

Notos forming part of the flnancial statemants as at 31 March 2019

(Currency: indian Rupeos)

No. Particuiars As at As at
31st March 2019 31st March 2018
3 Share Capllal
orized Share itat
5,000,000 (2013: 5,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 5,00,00,000 5,00,00,000
5,00,00,000 5,00,00,000_
Jssue ubseribed & Paig U ital
4,160,000 {2018: 4,160,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 sach, fully paid up 4,16,00,000 4,16,00,000
Total Share Capital 4,16,00,000 4,16,00,000
a, Recencitiation of the shares ouistanding at the heginning and at the end of the year
Equify Shares As at 31st March‘g_(y_g L As at 31st March 2018
Nos. Amount Nos. Amount
Number of Shares outstanding at the beginning of 41,560,080 4,16,00,000 41,60,000 4,16.00,000
the year ’
Movement during tha year _ ce ) - . - -
Number of Shares outstanding al the end of the 41,560,000 4,16,00,000 41,60,000 4,16,00,000
year
b. Terms/Rights attached to equity shares:
The Company has only one class of equily sharss ¢f face value of Rs 10 per share. Each hoider of equily shares is enlitiad o oo
vole per aquity share. A memiber shall not have any right to vole whilst any call or other sum shail be due and payabla to the Company
in respact of any of ihe shares of such membper. All equity shares of ihe Gompany rank pari passu in all raspects including ine nght lo
dividend, The dividend is recommended by the Board of Direclors and daclarsd by e members at lha ensuing Annual general
Meeting. The Board of Directors bave = right {o deduct from the dividend pavable to any member any sum due from him io the
Company.
The Sharsholders have all glher ngits as availabie 1o Equity Shareholders as ber the provisions of the Companies Arl, 2013, read
tagether with the Memorandum of Association and Artictes of Association of ihe Cumpany, as appiicable.
<.
c. Detalls of Sharehoidars ho'ding more than 5% equity shares in the company.
As at 31st March 2019 As at st March 2018
me of Sharchold — —
Narme of Shar % . Nos. % Holding Nos. % Hoiding
(i 1r. Vijay Thakotdas Thakkar 28,483,500 68,50 28,49,500 68.50
(i} Mrs. Dimpte Kamal Dalia 2,10,00C¢ £.08 Z.10,000 5.06
d. Details of Holding/Subsdiary Company,if any-Nil
e. Detaits of Shares issued for consideration other thn in cash in Last 5 Years-Nil
4 Reserves a urpius
a, Securities Premium Accaunt 5,25,00,000 5.25,00,000
Addition during the Year c - -
b. Surplus / {Deficit) iz Profit and Loss Statement
Balance brought forvard from previous vear 42,471,958 42,141,163
Add: Profil{Loss)after lax for the year transferred R 10,9057,428 - 36,795
Net Surptus/{Deficit) in Profit and Loss Statement at the end of the year ) 11,33,05,386 ~ 42,47,958
Total Reserves and Surp'us : ) . o 46,58,05,386 _5,67,47,858
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Manas Pronerties Limited

Notes forming part of the financtal statements as at 31 March 2018

{Curtency: indian Rupees)

As at As at
No. Particulars 31st March 2018 3tst March 2013
5 Long Term Borrowings
Unsacured
From Director 82,7/,165 57,39 553
From Related Parties {Reler Nols 5.1 and 29) 4C,00,000 10.00,000
Totat Long Term Borrowings . 92,77,765 67,39,558
5.1 Loans are interest free.
€ Other Long Term Liabilities
Security Deposits Received 21,00,00,000 21,00,00,000
Totat Other Long Torm Liabilities 21,00,00,000 21,00,00,000_
7 Jrade Payablss
a. Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprisas {Refer Nate 26} . ! C. -
b. Others 1,49,38¢ 1.49,389
- Cradilors for Expenses 1,49.389 1,49.389
- Credilors for Materials . .
- Creditors Staff “
Totai Trade Payables 1,49.389 1,49,3§§__
| Cther Current Liabiliti
Advancs received 6,01,92,162 6,36,92,160
Statutory Liabilitles Payable - ‘.
Bouok Overdralt - 45,36,012
Olhers 16,12,448 ¢ 17,22,950
Tota! Qther Current Llabilities 7,18,17,234 7,01,05,932
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Manas Proverties Limited
{Currency: indian Rupesas)

Notes forming part of the flnancial statements as at 31 March 2019

As at As at

No. Particulars
31st March 2019 31st March 2018

10 Non-Current Investmernts

A Trade Investmoents Un-Quotad {Af Cost}
fnvestinent in Property
Hotel Premises 32,63,39,651 32,63,34,051

B. Non-Tracle Investments (At Cost)
investment in Un-Quoted Equity Instruments

Others
Cosmos Go-op Bank Limited (including Membsrship Fees of Rs 100) 1,00.100 1,00,100
{1,000 (2016: 1,000} Equily Shares of L1 100/- aach fully paid up) .

Total Non-Cuirent Investments 32,64,39,151 32,64,39,151
Aggregate Amount Ot Unquoted Invesimanis * 32,64,33,151 32,64,39.151

" Long Yerm t oans and Advancas

Unsecured, Considered Good : ) . . 1 E R
a. Capilal Advance 8,40,00,000 2.50,00,000
b, MAT Credil Entitlement 1,35,34,778 90,37,785
c. Advance Income Tax/Refunc Due {Net of Provision) 1,4548.474 3.18.712
Totai Long Term L.oans and Advances ___11,20,83,252 3,43,54,497

12 [rade Recgivahles

Unsecured, Considered Goad ;

a. Quistanding for more than six monihs 93,161 50,93.161
b. Others - .
Total Vrade Receivables . 93,161 §0,93,161
13 Cash and Bank Balences ¢
a. Balance with Banks

In Current Accounts 2,96,57,855 -

In Fixed Deposils '3,00,000 -
b. Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash-in-Hand 4,806 5,206
Total Cash and Bank Balances 2,99,62,661 5,206
14 Short ans and Ady. s
1] Unsecured, Gonsidered Good ; :

Securily Deposits 1,40,00,000 1,40,00,000
(i}  Advances recoyerable jn cash or kind

Dav Land & Housing Private Lld 1,60,46.645 45,55,145
(i) Others
a. Baiance with Rovenue Authorities for Indirscl Taxes ) - 8,61270
B. Prepald Expanses 19,081 21,944
c. Accrued Inlerest on FD 315 -
Total Shost Term Loans and Advances 3,00,66,041 1,94,38,359

»
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Manas Properties Limited (Formetly known as Manas Properties Private Limited)

(Currency: indian Rupees}

Note : 11

Fixed Assets

8r {Particulars Gross Block Depreciation - Net Block

iNo. As at Additions Sales/ As at As at For the vear Deduction / As at As at As at

w 01-04-2018 Adjustment 30-09-2018 01-04-2018 ¥ Adjustment 30-09-2018 30-09-2018. 31-03-2019

! Tangible Assets '
Computers 58,900 - - 589900 47,060 7,478 ! 64,538 8,101 4,362
SUB TOTAL (A) 58,500 - - 58,200 47,060 7,478 . - 54,538 | .. 8,101 4,362
Total (A+B+C+D} 58,900 - - 58,900 47,060 7478 - 54,538 8,101 4,362
Previous Year - - . - - - - . - -] .
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Manas Properties Limifed

Notes forming part of the flnancial stalements as at 31 March 2019

{Currancy: Indian Rupees)

No.

Particulars

As at As at

Wianas Properties Limited

Notes forming part of the financial stalements as at 31 March 2019

31st March 2019 31st March 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupess)

No. Particulars Current Year Pievious Vear
15 R: fro ration
Commission Income 1.,60,000
Total Revenue from Operalions - 7,00,000
16 Other Income
Consultancy Charges - 25,00,000
Dividend tncome on Non-Current invesiment 2.800 - R
Interest on Incomne Tax Refund - 53,849
interest on Fixed Deposits 315 .
Reimbursement of MCGM Charges - 30,22,717
Lease Renlals ) . 16:85,97,090 -
Total Other income 16,86,00,205 55,76,566
17 Employge Benefits nges
Salarivs and Bonus 7.44,000 2,49 0600
Oireclors Remungralion 24 60,000 30,00,000
Total Employee Benefils Expenses 314,44,000 32,49,000
18 Finance Cost
Interest on TOS 60,458 65,430
Bank Charges 8,565 1,503
69,023 56,933
19 Depreciation moriization E. ‘.
Depreciation of Tangible Assets {Refar Note 11) 7.478 17.391
Total Depreciation and Amortization Expenses < 7,478 17,?_91__
20 Other Expenses
Payment lo Auditors (Refer Note 25} 1,20,000 1.20.000
Advertisement Expenses 3,600 5,760
Labour Charges - 7,000
Legal and Profassionat Expensas 8,40.947 22,76,658
Management Fees 1.80.00,000 -
Commission Charges - 90,400
Director Siiting Fees 6,50,000 40,000
Annual Charges lo Exchange Board - 1,70,343
Insurance Expenses 95,726 1,02,595
Krishi Kalyan Cess - 33,512
MCGMIBMC 12,44,790 -
Profession Tax {Company) 2,500 2.500
Share I3sus Expenses - 56,000
Swacch Bharal Cess - . 6,944
Miscellansous Cxpenses 76,115 = 9,215
Reni Expenses 1,20,00,000 -
Sundry Expanses - . 5,239
Appeal Feas 500- -
Share Listing Expenses 1,49,760 -
Software Expenses © 7,906 -
Totat Qther Expenses .3,3%1,91,844. - - 29,26,226 -
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Manas Properties i.imited

Notes forming part ot the financial statements as at 31 March 2018

(Curtency: indian Rupees)

As at As at
No. Particut
ariowars J1st March 2019 31st March 2018
21 Contingent Liabilities and Commilments:
a. Contlngent Llabilities
(i Capilal Commitments 10,00,000 4. 14,00,000
22 In the opinion of the Board, ihe Company has made adequale provisions for all the known liabilities end the same is not in excess of
Ihe amounts considered as reasonably necessary.
23 0 al Medgi Enterprises Develo nt 2008;
Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008 which came into force from 2nd Ociober, 2006, certain
disclosure are required lo be made reialing to Micro, Small and Medium Enlergrises. On (he basis of lhe informalion and records
available wilh 1he management, theie are no parties regislered as Micro, Smal and Medium Enterprises with whom the Company has
carried out any lransaclions. ’
24 Details of Payment to Auditors; Currant Year Previous Year
Statutory Audit Fees ) . . . 1 1,20,00C 1,20,000
Total 1,20,000 1,20,660
2% Segment Reporting:
The Company's business activily falls wilthin a Single primary business segment i.e Conslrustions, Redeveiopmenl and Leasing of
Properlies. Accordingly, lhese inancial statements are refleclive of the information required by the Accounting Standard 17.
26 Related Part nsaction:
Disclosures as required by Accounling Standard (AS) - 18 *Relaled Party Disclosure” are as under.
a, List of Related Parties where transaction has taken place during the year
Name of Party Nature of Relationghlp ¥
Dev land & Housing Privale Limited : Promoter )
Qev Thakkar Managing Diractor & CEQ {w.e.f 14.01.2017)
Vijay Thakordas Thakkar Whoie Time Director .
Kamnlesh Thakkar Chiof Financial Cfficer {(w.e.f 14.01.2017)
b.  Transactions with reiated parties: ~mTre e Previous Year
Remuneration to Key Manageriai Personnel
Dev Thakkar 24,00,000 24,00,000
Kamlesh Thakkar 5,000,000 8,00,000
30,00,000 30,090,000
Advance Pald towards Acquisition of Propecty
Dev Land & Housing Privale Limited 5,90,00,000 2,50,00,000
$,90,00,000 __2,50,00,000
Rent Expenses
Dev Land & Housing Prdvale Limited 4,08,00,000 -
1,08,00,000 -
Management Service Foes - ’
Dev Land & Housing Private Limited 1,62,00,000 . -
1,62,00,000 . -
Expensaes incurred on our behalf: .
{®) Dev Land & Housing Private Limited 500 : 13‘800_
(i) Vijey Thakordas Thakkar 75,85,457 ., 58.1ee8
Less: Reimbursement 50,47,250 - - 7147741
25,38,207 - (11,88,873)
s’
T P538707 {11,56,073).
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Manas Properties Limited

Notes fornting gart of the financial statemenis as at 31 March 2018

{Currency: indian Rupeus}

No. Particulars As at As at
34st March 2019 31st March 2018
G, Balances with refated parties outstanding as at year end: As at - As at -
31st March 2019 31st March 2018
Dev Land & Housing Private Limited 10.00,46,645 2,95,55,145
Capila! Advance 8,40,00,000 2,50,00,000
Creditors having Debit Balance 1,60,46,645 45,55,t45
Videv Realtors Privale Limited 10,00,000 10,800,000
Vijay Thakordas Thakkar 82,77.76% 57,439,558
Short Term Security Deposits
Tanish Reaftors Private Limiled 1,00,00,000 1,00.00,000
Credilors For Expenses:
Dev Thakkar 5,655,980 3,96,480
Kamlesh Thakkar {Satary Payable) . - 1 48,800, 48,800
27 Details of Leasing arrangemen
| Com ing Lesgee:
The Company has enlered inlo operating lease agreement for office premises.Tho leases are cancelable and are for a period from 1
April 2018 (o 31 March 2024 The lease agreement provide for an increass in the lvase paymenls by 4% every year.
Cancellable Operating Leases: ) o
- Particulars 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-18
Commitmenls for minimum lease payments in relafion to cancellable operaling lcases.are
payable as follows:
Within 1 yeas 12000000 | ¥
Later than 1 year but not taler than 5 years 1,20,00,000
Later than 5 years . -
Renlal expenses relating to operating ieases
Particulars 34-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Minirim lease payments 1,20,00,600 -
Total Renla! expense relating to operating leases 1,20,00,000 .
)l Company beinp Lassor:
The Company has entered into operating lease agreament for hotet premises. The leases are non-canceilable and are for @ peficd from
o1st Oct,2018 to 30th Sep,2038.The lease agreement provide for an increasa in Ihe jease payments by 4 % every year from Oct
2023,
Non Cancellable Operating Leasas:
Particutars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Cemmitmants for minimum lease payments in relation to non-cancellabie operating leases
are payable as follows:
Within 1 year 33,71,94,180 -
Laler than 1 year but not Jater than S years 1.71,50,63,766 -
Later than 5 years 6,30,60.85,050
Rental Income relating to opsrating leases i . —
Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Minimum lease rental icome 16,65,07,090 .
Total Rental incoma relaling to opsrating | 16,85,97,090 -
28  Earnings Per Share:
Net Profit / (Loss) aitributable 10 sharehalders 10_90.57,42/8 = 36,785
Nominal value per Equily Share 10 10
Earnings Per Share (Basic & Diluted) 26,22 0.01
29 Deferred Tax:
Major companents of deferred tax assels and liabiiities as al year-snd are as under:
Opening Deferred Tax Liabilily / (Assets) (622} 1,480
Deferred 1ax liabiiity on account of
- Depisciation {2.082)
{2,082)

Movement during the year - deferred Tax {14

Annual Report 2018-2019




Manas Properties Limited
(Currency: indian Rupees)

Notes forming part of the financial statements as al 31 March 2019

As at As at

No. Esticuiaie 31stMarch 2018 31st March 2018
Closing Deferred Tax Liabifity / {Asset) (1,146} {622}

30 Carporate sactal responsibility expendiure
Since the Company is nol atlracled hy the provision of Cotporate Social Respoasibility, it is not rquited (o spend any amounl {owards CSR
commilment

N Consequenl upon, sefilament of dispule with the party. the Company has started recognising rental income in Current Year.

32 Prior Year Comparatives: i
Previous year's figures are regrouped, rearranged or reclassified wherever considered necessary, to confitm to |he current year's
classification.

Signature to Notes 1 to 32 forming part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached
' N

For JMR & Assaciates LLP For alitﬁoh Behalf of the Board of the Direct $ i .
Chartered Accountonts ol i o ¢ 3

. L AL e A :
Firm Reg No. 106912WM 100300 o W\\ W A4

o207

i

Thakkar
Managing Director & CEQ

Patlper
Membershighld. 114003 & .
Mumbai, 30 May 2049 Mumbai, 30 May 2019
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FORM NO SH-13
Nomination Form
[Pursuant to section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share
Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014]

To,

Manas Properties Limited

10t Floor, Dev Plaza, Opp. Andheri Fire Station,
S. V. Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai - 400058.

I / We, the holder(s) of the securities
particulars of which are given hereunder wish to make nomination and do hereby nominate the
following persons in whom shall vest, all the rights in respect of such securities in the event of my
/ our death.

(1) PARTICULARS OF THE SECURITIES (in respect of which nomination is being made)

Nature of Folio No. No of Certificate No Distinctive
Securities Securities No

(2) PARTICULARS OF NOMINEE/S -

a) Name:

b) Date of Birth:

c) Father’s / Mother’s / Spouse’s name:
d) Occupation:

e) Nationality:

f) Address:

g) E-mail Id:

h) Relationship with the security holder:
(3) IN CASE NOMINEE IS A MINOR -

a) Date of Birth

b) Date of attaining majority
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c) Name of guardian

d) Address of guardian

Name:

Address:

Name of the Security Holder (s) :

Signature

Witness with the name and address:
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Form No. SH-14
Cancellation or Variation of Nomination [Pursuant to section 72 of the Companies Act,
2013 and rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014]

To,

Manas Properties Limited

10t Floor, Dev Plaza, Opp. Andheri Fire Station,
S. V. Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai - 400058

I / We hereby cancel the nomination(s) made by me / us in favor of ...... ccccvvvrvrinene.
............................................................... name and address of the nominee) in respect of the below
mentioned securities

Or
I / We hereby nominate the following person in place of .........cocooeeir e ciricencneees as nominee in
respect of the below mentioned securities in whom shall vest all rights in respect of such

securities in the event of my/our death

PARTICULARS OF THE SECURITIES (in respect of which nomination is being made)

Nature of Folio No. No of Certificate No Distinctive No
Securities Securities

PARTICULARS OF NOMINEE/S

Name : ..o Relationship with the security holder:

Y6 Lo LTS

E-mail Id: eoveveieeieeeee e e e
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10.

IN CASE NOMINEE IS A MINOR -

Date of Birth: ....cccceeeciiiiie e

Date of attaining Majority: .......coceveeeeeerinenee e
Name of guardian: ..........cceccmieiin e

Address of guardian: ..........ccocevmreiinin e

Name and address of security holder (s) Signature

Name and address of witness Signature
Please fill this Nomination form in Duplicate after carefully reading the instruction given below:

The Nomination can be made by individual’s only holdings shares singly or jointly. Non-
individuals including Society, Trust, Body Corporate, Partnership firm, Karta of Hindu Undivided
Family and Power of Attorney holder cannot nominate.

The nominee shall not be a Trust, Society, Body Corporate, and Partnership firm, Karta of Hindu
Undivided Family and power of attorney holder.

The shareholder [s] can nominate a minor as a nominee and in that event the name and address
of the guardian shall be provided.

As per section 72 of Companies Act 2013, if the shares are held by more than one person jointly,
then the joint holders may together nominate a person to whom all the rights in the shares of the
Company shall vest, in the event of death of all the joint holders.

If the shares are held jointly, subsequent to the death of anyone of the holders, the shares would
not be registered in favour of the nominee but would be transferred in the name of the surviving
shareholders.

The nomination form filled in “duplicate” should be lodged with the Registrar and Share transfer
Agent of the Company i.e. Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd 1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building, Opp.
Vasant Oasis Apartments (Next to Keys Hotel), Marol Maroshi Road, Andheri East, Mumbai -
400059. Tel: 022 - 62638200 Fax: 022-62638299 Email: investor@bigshareonline.com Website:
www.bigshareonline.com

The shareholder[s] can delete or change an earlier nomination by executing Form No. SH-14
(Cancellation or Variation of Nomination form)

Nomination stands cancelled whenever the shares in the given folio are transferred/
dematerialized. Also in case of change in folio due to consolidation/ transmission a new
nomination has to be filed.

The nomination made through Form No. SH-13 will be considered valid if the nomination made
by the holder[s] of the shares is registered with the company before the death of the registered
holder([s] of the shares.

Kindly note that the nomination being a legal document should be dated by the nominator and the
witness should certify that the nominator has signed the form in their presence. Furthermore the
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date of execution on the Nomination Form should match with the date of witness, witnessing the
document.

15th Annual General Meeting - at Registered Office of the Company Situated at 10TH Floor,
Dev Plaza, Opp. Andheri Fire Station, S. V. Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai - 400058

On Monday, 30t September, 2019 at 11.00 AM.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member(s)

I / We hereby record my /our presence at 10TH Floor, Dev Plaza, Opp. Andheri Fire Station, S. V.
Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai - 400058 On Monday, 30th September, 2019 at 11.00 AM.

Member’s / Proxy’s Signature

1. Please complete the above details and sign this attendance slip and hand it over at the attendance
verification counter at the meeting hall.

2. Electronic copy of the Annual Report for FY 2018 -2019 and the Notice of the Annual General
Meeting along with attendance slip and proxy form is being sent to all the members whose email
address is registered with the depository participant. Members receiving electronic copy and
attending the AGM can print copy of this attendance slip.

3. Physical copy of the Annual Report for 2018-2019 and the Notice of the Annual General Meeting
along with the attendance slip and proxy form is sent in the permitted mode(s) to all members
whose email is not registered or who have requested for a hard copy

Manas Properties Limited
Regd Office: 10th Floor, Dev Plaza, Opp. Andheri Fire Station, S. V. Road, Andheri
(West), Mumbai - 400058.

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICUALRS

EVEN (E-Voting Event USERID PASSWORD/PIN
Number)

Note : Please read instructions given in the Notice of the 15t Annual General Meeting Carefully
before Voting electronically.

15th Annual General Meeting - at Registered Office of the Company Situated at 10TH Floor,
Dev Plaza, Opp. Andheri Fire Station, S. V. Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai - 400058
On Monday, 30t September, 2019 at 11.00 AM.
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PROXY FORM
Manas Properties Limited
Regd Office: 10th Floor, Dev Plaza, Opp. Andheri Fire Station, S. V. Road, Andheri
(West), Mumbai - 400058.
15th Annual General Meeting - 30th September, 2019

Name of the Member(s)

[ / We being the member (s) of shares of the above named company hereby appoint

1. Name:
Email ID:
Address

Signature:

or failing him

2. Name:
Email ID:
Address

Signature:

or failing him

3. Name:
Email ID:
Address

Signature:

or failing him

as per my / our proxy to vote (on a poll) for me / us on my /our behalf at the 15t Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held on, Monday, 30t September, 2019 at 11.00 a.m at 10TH
Floor, Dev Plaza, Opp. Andheri Fire Station, S. V. Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai - 400058 on and
adjournment thereof.
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Ordinary Business

Ordinary Resolution for adoption of Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,
2019.

Ordinary Resolution for re-appointment Mr. Vijay Thakkar who is retiring by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Special Business

Special Resolution for revision in remuneration payable to Mr. Dev Thakkar, Managing Director
of the company

Ordinary Resolution for approval of Related Party Transactions upto the Maximum Limits as
specified with the related party.

Signed this day of 2019 Re.1

Revenue

Signature of the Shareholder

Signature of Proxy

Note:

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
registered office of the company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
meeting.

For the resolutions, explanatory statements and notes, please refer to the notice of 15t Annual
General Meeting.

[t is Optional to put ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the Resolutions indicated in the Box. If
you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all resolution, your proxy will be
entitled to vote in the manner as he / she thinks appropriate

Please complete all details including details of member(s) in the above box before submission

MANAS PROPERTIES LIMITED
15th Annual General Meeting - at Registered Office of the Company Situated at 10TH Floor,

Dev Plaza, Opp. Andheri Fire Station, S. V. Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai - 400058
On Monday, 30t September, 2019 at 11.00 AM.
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5.

ASSENT/ DISSENT FORM FOR VOTING ON AGM RESOLUTIONS

Manas Properties Limited

Regd Office: 10TH Floor, Dev Plaza, Opp. Andheri Fire Station, S. V. Road, Andheri

(West), Mumbai - 400058.

15th Annual General Meeting - 30t September, 2019

Name(s) & Registered
Address :

Of the sole / first named
Member

Name(s) of the Joint-
Holder(s) : If any

i) Registered Folio No. :

ii) DP ID No & Client ID
No. [Applicable to
Members Holding shares
in dematerialized Form]

Number of Shares(s) held

I/ We hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the following resolutions to be passed for the
business stated in the Notice of the Annual general Meeting dated 14th August, 2019 by
conveying my/ our assent or dissent to the resolutions by placing tick ( V) mark in the
appropriate box below:

SR. Resolutions Optional *'
No
Ordinary Business For Against

1 Ordinary Resolution for adoption of Audited Financial Statements
for the year ended 31st March, 2019.
2 Ordinary Resolution for re- appointment of Mr. Vijay Thakkar who

appointment.

is retiring by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-

Special Business

3 Special Resolution for revision in remuneration payable to Mr. Dev
Thakkar, Managing Director of the company
4 Ordinary Resolution for approval of Related Party Transactions

upto the Maximum Limits as specified with the related party.
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Place:
Date:

Signature of the Member
Or
Authorized Representative

Notes: i) If you opt to cast your vote by e-voting, there is no need to fill up and sign this form.
ii) Last date for receipt of Assent/ Dissent Form: 29th September 2019 (5.00 pm)
iii) Please read the instructions printed overleaf carefully before exercising your vote.

General Instructions

Shareholders have option to vote either through e-voting i.e. electronic means o to convey
assent/dissent. If a shareholder has opted for physical Assent/Dissent Form, then he/she should
not vote by e-voting and vice versa. However, in case Shareholders cast their vote through
physical assent/dissent form and e-voting, then vote cast through physical assent/dissent shall be
considered, subject to the assent/dissent form being found to be valid and vote cast through e-
voting shall be treated as invalid.

The notice of Annual General Meeting is dispatch/ e-mailed to the members whose names appear
on the Register of Members as on 30th August, 2019.

Voting through physical assent/ dissent form cannot be exercised by a proxy. However, corporate
and institutional shareholders shall be entitled to vote through their authorized representatives
with proof of their authorization, as stated below.

Instructions for voting physically on Assent / Dissent Form

A member desiring to exercise vote by Assent/ Dissent should complete this Form (no other form
or photocopy thereof is permitted) and send it to the Scrutinizer, at their cost to reach the
Scrutinizer at the registered office of the Company on or before the close of working hours i.e
5.00 pm on 29th September, 2019. All Forms received after this date will be strictly treated as if
the reply from such Member has not been received.

This Form should be completed and signed by the Shareholder (as per the specimen signature
registered with the Company/ Depository Participants). In case of joint holding, this Form should
be completed and signed by the first named Shareholder and in his absence, by the next named
Shareholder.

In respect of shares held by corporate and institutional shareholders (companies, trusts, societies
etc.) the completed Assent/ Dissent Form should be accompanied by a certified copy of the
relevant Board Resolution/ appropriate authorization, with the specimen signature(s) of the
authorized signatory (ies) duly attested.
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9.

The consent must be accorded by recording the assent in the column “FOR” or dissent in the
column “AGAINST” by placing a tick mark (V) in the appropriate column in the Form. The assent
or dissent received in any other form shall not be considered valid.

Members are requested to fill the Form in indelible ink and avoid filling it by using erasable
writing medium(s) like pencil.

There will be one Assent/ Dissent Form for every folio / Client id irrespective of the number of
joint holders.

A member may request for a duplicate Assent/ Dissent Form, if so required and the same duly
completed should reach the Scrutinizer not later than the specified under instruction No.1 above.

Members are requested not to send any other paper along with the Assent / Dissent Form. They
are also requested not to write anything in the Assent/ Dissent form except giving their assent or
dissent and putting their signature. If nay such other paper is sent the same will be destroyed by
the Scrutinizer.

The Scrutinizers decision on the validity of the Assent/ Dissent Form will be final and binding.

10. Incomplete, unsigned or incorrectly ticked Assent/ Dissent Forms will be rejected.
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